
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Questions regarding the nature of the agenda items or more detail on the agenda items listed above scheduled to be considered by the governmental 
body listed above can be directed to Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator at 920-854-4118 or at zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov.  

It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above-
stated meeting to gather information; no action will be taken by any governmental body at the above-stated meeting other than the governmental body 
specifically referred to above in this notice. Upon reasonable notice, a good faith effort will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled 
individuals through sign language interpreters or other auxiliary aid at no cost to the individual to participate in public meetings. Due to the difficulty in 
finding interpreters, requests should be made as far in advance as possible preferably a minimum of 48 hours. For additional information or to request 
this service, contact the Sister Bay Village Administrator at 854-4118, (FAX) 854-9637, or by writing to the Village Administrator at the Village 
Administration Building, 2383 Maple Drive, PO Box 769, Sister Bay, WI 54234. Copies of reports and other supporting documentation are available 
for review at the Village Administration Building during operating hours. (8 a.m. – 4 p.m. weekdays). 

I hereby certify that I have posted a copy of this agenda at the following locations: 

  □ Administration Building                   □ Library                       □ Post Office 

___________________________________________ / ___________________ 

Name                  Date 

 

         

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


2



PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The November 5, 2014 meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee was called 6 
to order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 2:17 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John Clove, Sharon Doersching and 9 
Scott Baker.   10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Facilities Manager Steve Mann, and 12 
Administrative Assistant Janal Suppanz.  13 
 14 
Others:   Allison Vroman and Jordan Burress of the Door County YMCA, Jeff Bakke, Lyle 15 
Bruss and Paige Funkhouser.  16 
 17 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 18 
Lienau noted that no new correspondence had been received, and then asked if anyone in 19 
the audience wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. 20 
 21 
Lyle Bruss stated that he and a group of citizens would like to see a sculpture park which is 22 
complete with walking trails created on the Village owned property adjacent to the Fire 23 
Station. He then presented a copy of a brochure from another community’s sculpture park, 24 
and the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. During the review process 25 
the committee members noted that they are open to Bruss’ suggestion, but asked that he 26 
look into grant opportunities which may be available. It was the consensus that this issue 27 
shall be reviewed at length at the next Parks Committee Meeting.  28 
 29 
Paige Funkhouser of the SBAA noted that Fall Fest went quite well in spite of the weather. 30 
She also thanked Steve Mann and the other Parks Department employees for all their 31 
assistance. The ping pong ball drop took place on the Braun property because the FAA 32 
approved that plan. There are still Fall Fest shirts, hats and caps available for sale.  33 
 34 
Funkhouser asked if Village officials plan to see that the area where construction and line 35 
burial will be taking place will be decorated for Christmas, as a number of logistical issues 36 
could arise, and it was the consensus that this issue shall be addressed at the next Parks 37 
Committee Meeting. She also pointed out that it may work better to place “Santa’s 38 
Mailbox” by her office this year.    39 
 40 
Approval of minutes as published: 41 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Doersching that the minutes for the October 1, 42 
2014 meeting of the Parks, Properties & Street Committee be approved as presented. 43 
Motion carried – All ayes. 44 
 45 
Approval of Agenda: 46 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the November 5, 47 
2014 meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 48 

3



Minutes for the November 5, 2014 Meeting of the Parks, Property & Streets Committee 

 

- 2 - 

Business Items: 1 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding gravel placement at the Dog Park; Consider a motion 2 
for action: 3 
Jeff Bakke of the Dog Park Group indicated that due to the heavy rains and overuse of the 4 
Dog Park, the area of the park from the gate to the shelter is getting quite muddy and worn. 5 
The Maintenance Department employees delivered wood chips out there and that measure 6 
is greatly appreciated, but the members of the Dog Park Group are asking that gravel be 7 
laid over the area from the fence to the culvert as there are drainage issues.  8 
 9 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that Steve Mann shall see that a 10 
sufficient amount of gravel is delivered to the Dog Park and spread out over the areas 11 
where fill is needed. The funds for that project shall be withdrawn from the Various Parks 12 
Projects Account. Motion carried – All ayes.   13 
   14 
Bakke also suggested that during the winter months a covered sand container be placed 15 
out at the Dog Park. It was the consensus that this would be a good idea. 16 
 17 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding the placement of a donation box at the Dog Park; 18 
Consider a motion for action if necessary: 19 
At the last Village Board Meeting Kathy Enquist pointed out that since dogs are not allowed 20 
in the Village’s parks visitors to the area are often instructed to take their dogs out to the 21 
Dog Park. She suggested that a locked donation box be placed out there in case people 22 
wish to make donations to help cover operational expenses. 23 
 24 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that Steve Mann shall see that a sturdy 25 
donation box is constructed and placed out at the Dog Park. The funds for the cost of 26 
fabricating the donation box shall be withdrawn from the Various Parks Projects Account. 27 
Motion carried – All ayes.  28 
 29 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding a request from the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile 30 
Club to alter the designated snowmobile route; Consider a motion for action if necessary: 31 
Mann indicated that Kirby Olson of the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile Club has 32 
requested that the designated snowmobile route be altered a bit. Basically if snowmobilers 33 
use the established snowmobile route they are required to bypass the downtown area. 34 
Olson is proposing that the route depicted on the map which was included in the meeting 35 
packets be approved. The new route would be used on a trial basis, and if it works the 36 
members of the snowmobile club would be interested in helping with land clearing. A 37 
designated snowmobile parking area would also be created out at the Sports Complex.  38 
 39 
Mann indicated that it is his understanding that the members of the Top O’ The Thumb 40 
Snowmobile Club have expressed interest in conducting radar runs or other snowmobile 41 
related events out at the Sports Complex during the winter months. 42 
 43 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the snowmobile route map which 44 
was included in the meeting packets is approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes.     45 
 46 
Item No. 4. Presentation by the YMCA on annual program activities in Sister Bay; 47 
Discussion regarding that matter, and consider a motion for action if necessary: 48 
Allison Vroman and Jordan Burress of the Door County YMCA presented a proposal for 49 

4



Minutes for the November 5, 2014 Meeting of the Parks, Property & Streets Committee 

 

- 3 - 

collaborative programming for 2015 and the Committee members jointly reviewed that 1 
documentation. The youth summer programs were well attended by children of Village 2 
residents, and because of that fact the fee structure for the camps has changed a bit. In 3 
accord with the proposal which was presented at this meeting the Village would incur 4 
costs of $12,288 for adult and youth YMCA programming in 2015. The Committee 5 
members indicated that they have been very happy with the YMCA programming, and it 6 
was the consensus that this issue shall be addressed at length at the December Parks 7 
Committee Meeting. 8 
 9 
Doersching suggested that next year better marketing be done for the Sister Bay/YMCA 10 
programming, and it was the consensus that this issue shall be referred to the Marketing 11 
Committee. 12 
 13 
Item No. 5. Discussion on the use of Waterfront Park for tented events in 2015; Consider 14 
a motion for action if necessary: 15 
A number of calls have been received regarding the availability of Waterfront Park for 16 
tented events in 2015. Since work will be done on the beach and line burial projects there 17 
is some concern as to whether that area will even be accessible for a while. 18 
 19 
It was the consensus that Village Administrative staff members shall be given discretion to 20 
decide when Waterfront Park may be utilized for tented events. 21 
 22 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding potential petroleum contamination of Hendrickson Park 23 
(From the Old Texaco Gas Station): 24 
It was the consensus that this agenda item shall be tabled. 25 
 26 
Item No. 7. Report from Steve Mann on activities: 27 
Mann gave an oral report regarding the following issues: 28 

 The sewer line and lift pump for the baseball concession stand have been installed 29 
out at the Sports Complex. 30 

 The Maintenance Department employees have identified a number of instances 31 
where it would be helpful to have a cement mixer. It was the consensus that this 32 
would be a worthwhile purchase. Mann and Jackson will see that one is ordered. 33 

 Work has been done on the lateral to the Village Hall. Some street light lines had to 34 
be disconnected and unfortunately the sprinkler system was damaged. The contract 35 
calls for lawn restoration work to be done, but the Maintenance Department 36 
employees could do that work. It was the consensus that if cost savings will be 37 
realized that will be fine. 38 

 The Marina has “been put away” for the season. 39 

 In an attempt to minimize ice damage the bubblers at the Marina will be installed 40 
differently this year. 41 

 As a result of the last couple of wind storms the old Helm’s Dock was destroyed 42 
and boards have been floating around in the water by the Yacht Club at Sister Bay. 43 
To date three dump truck loads of boards have been hauled away from that area. 44 
The Parks Department employees will continue to monitor the situation and will 45 
see that as many of the boards as possible are removed in a timely fashion. 46 

 The furnaces at the Maintenance Department Building are very old and need to be 47 
replaced. The funds have been budgeted for this expenditure and Mann will see 48 

5



Minutes for the November 5, 2014 Meeting of the Parks, Property & Streets Committee 

I:\2014 Agendas\Parks\2014\2014_11\110514 Parks Com. Meeting Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 11/5/2014; Last Printed:  11/14/2014 12:49 PM 

- 4 - 

that two new propane furnaces are installed. The oil furnace will be retained as a 1 
back-up measure.     2 
 3 

The Committee members thanked Mann and the other Parks Department employees for all 4 
their efforts. 5 
 6 
Item No. 8. Discussion on other parks and streets activities: 7 
Jackson noted that weather permitting work should be commencing on the line burial 8 
project in February or March. He also noted that an estimate from Hockers Excavating for 9 
the sledding hill was included in the meeting packets. The black dirt will have to be 10 
pushed back before it freezes. That estimate came in lower than had been anticipated.  11 
 12 
Item No. 9. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 13 
committee, official or employee: 14 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be addressed at the next Parks 15 
Committee Meeting: 16 

 Discussion regarding creation of a sculpture park and a walking trail on the 17 
property adjacent to the Fire Station. 18 

 Discussion regarding erection and placement of Christmas decorations in the area 19 
where road construction and line burial will be taking place. 20 

 Discussion regarding the YMCA’s programming proposal for 2015. 21 
 22 
Discussion regarding potential petroleum contamination of Hendrickson Park (From the 23 
Old Texaco Gas Station) will also be placed on a future Parks Committee Agenda as soon 24 
as more information is available. 25 
 26 
Clove suggested that after an upcoming meeting the Parks Committee sponsor a “pizza 27 
party” for the Maintenance Department employees as a way of showing gratitude to those 28 
employees for all their efforts. It was the consensus that this shall occur. 29 
 30 
Adjournment: 31 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Doersching to adjourn the meeting of the 32 
Parks Committee at 3:50 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.  33 
 34 
Respectfully submitted,  35 

 36 
Janal Suppanz,  37 
Administrative Assistant 38 

6



  Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. 
  Engineering, Surveying, Environmental Services 

 

 Green Bay Office 
 1250 Centennial Centre Boulevard 
 Hobart, WI 54155-8995 
  920-662-9641 
  FAX 920-662-9141 
 

W:\0000\0000-006\Municipal\Proposal\2014\PR122614_Mill Road Parking Lot Drainage Improvement.docx 

 

December 26, 2014 

 

 

 

Mr. Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator 

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 

2383 Maple Drive 

P.O. Box 769 

Sister Bay, WI  54234 
 

RE: Engineering/Surveying Services Proposal 

 Parking Lot Design – Mill Road Drainage Improvements 

 Village of Sister Bay, Door County, WI 

 

Dear Zeke: 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this surveying and engineering services proposal for 

the design of the proposed parking lot on the vacant parcel adjacent to Mill Road.  The parking 

lot is being designed as part of an agreement with the Wisconsin Department of Transportation 

(WisDOT), for mitigation of infrastrucure lost in association with Highway 42 improvements.  In 

addition to the parking lot improvements, Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc., (REL) will analyze 

the drainage and road conditions of Mill Road from the intersection of Parkview Lane through 

the WisDOT limits of construction adjacent to Highway 42.  This analysis will upgrade the poor 

drainage conditions that exist in this section of road, and will propose any improvements needed 

to create a sound road structure.  Listed below is a summary of the services to be provided and 

associated costs. 

 

SURVEYING SERVICES 

 

During design development of the parking and drainage features, it will be important to identify 

the existing characteristics of the site.  This information can be used to allow the parking lot 

design to accommodate existing infrastructure and signature trees that exist in the open space 

South of Mill Road.  Background survey information will also be important to identify poorly 

draining portions of the roadway, so proposed improvements can be properly designed. 

 

In addition to the survey services list within this proposal, REL will utilize the Certified Survey 

Map prepared on behalf of the WisDOT.  This map will be used, as approved, at the upcoming 

Village meetings. 

7



December 26, 2014 

Mr. Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator 

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 

Page 2 

 

 

W:\0000\0000-006\Municipal\Proposal\2014\PR122614_Mill Road Parking Lot Drainage Improvement.docx 

Topographic Survey 

We will prepare a topographic survey of the subject parcel, as well as the adjacent roadway, from 

Parkview Lane to North Bay Shore Drive.  The survey will show all permanent topographic 

features including, but not limited to, buildings; concrete and asphalt surfaces; parking lot 

striping; signs; significant trees, landscaping and substantial vegetation; visibly-marked utility 

line locations on the parcel, and curb openings to public streets.  We will generate one-foot 

contours for the entire site, and list spot elevations on the map, as needed, to clarify certain areas.  

 

Upon your notice to proceed, we will contact Digger’s Hotline to arrange for all underground 

utilities on the site to be marked.  By law, Digger’s Hotline has ten days to complete markings 

for planning purposes.  However, in anticipation of this project, REL has already contacted 

Digger’s Hotline to expedite the design development process. 

 

We propose a lump sum fee of $2,450 to complete the topographic survey. 

 

SITE ENGINEERING 

 

REL will perform the civil engineering design services necessary to create a biddable plan for 

the parking lot and adjacent roadway.  This information will be available for REL to assist in the 

bidding process, or for the State or County to utilize during their construction process.  Listed 

below is the scope of engineering services for the site work: 

 

1. Prepare preliminary plans for the development to include the following: 

 Existing Site Conditions. 

 Site Plan. 

 Utility Plan. 

 Grading Plan. 

 Erosion Control Plan. 

 

2. We will review the preliminary plans with the Village of Sister Bay. 

 

3. We will revise the preliminary plans based upon the comments received during plan 

review and submit the plans and engineering reports to the Village, WisDOT, and 

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) for review as appropriate. 

 

4. REL will prepare construction documents, which address all comments received during 

the plan review process.  The construction documents will include the following: 

 Existing Site Conditions and Demolition Plan. 

 Site Plan. 

 Grading and Erosion Control Plan. 

 Utility Plan. 

 Detail Drawings. 

 Specifications. 

8



December 26, 2014 

Mr. Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator 

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 

Page 3 

 

 

W:\0000\0000-006\Municipal\Proposal\2014\PR122614_Mill Road Parking Lot Drainage Improvement.docx 

The proposed fee for the site engineering efforts is a lump sum of $4,600.  No submittal fees are 

included in the above costs.  This cost includes up to one meeting with the Owner in Sister Bay. 

Each additional meeting will be billed on a time-and-expense basis.  

 

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT 
 

Based on the preliminary parking lot site plan and the anticipated amount of land disturbing 

activities required to properly regard Mill Road to improve drainage characteristics, it is 

estimated that the site will disturb more than one acre of land.  One acre is the threshold for post- 

construction storm water management, thus requiring a storm water plan and submittal of a 

Notice of Intent (NOI) to the WDNR. 

 

In addition of the requirement to perform post-construction storm water management, the 

proximity of the improvements to the Bay of Green Bay would suggest that storm water 

management should be conducted regardless of the requirement.  It has been found in various 

communities throughout Door County, that pollutants entering the Bay, specifically from parking 

lots near beach features have led to elevate levels of contaminants, forcing beach closures.  By 

being proactive in improving water quality, the Village of Sister Bay can help minimize beach 

closures, resulting from new improvements. 

 

The Storm Water Management Plan will include the following: 

 

1. Perform pre-development and post-development hydrologic calculations. 

 

2. Design BMPs to meet the requirements for storm water quantity. 

 

3. Prepare plans and a design report that includes the design criteria, site data, proposed 

BMPs, and hydrologic and hydraulic calculations. 

 

4. Submit WDNR Notice of Intent for site construction.  Submittal to the WDNR will 

require a summary letter from the owner of the storm water feature.  If the Village does 

not own the pond, assistance in acquiring this letter may be required.  

 

The proposed fee for this work is a lump sum of $3,400.  The estimated WDNR submittal fee is 

$140; however, actual permit fees will be passed along for direct payment by the Owner.  Soil 

borings are typically required for the submittal of the NOI.  It is our recommendation to conduct 

soil borings in advance of submitting the NOI.  If existing soil information, such as soil type or 

depth to bedrock already exists for the site, additional sub-surface exploration would not be 

required.    

9



December 26, 2014 

Mr. Zeke Jackson, Village Administrator 

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 

Page 4 

 

 

W:\0000\0000-006\Municipal\Proposal\2014\PR122614_Mill Road Parking Lot Drainage Improvement.docx 

SUMMARY OF FEES 
 

  Topographic     $  2,450 

  Site Engineering    $  4,600 

  Storm Water Management*   $  3,400 

  TOTAL     $10,450 

 

*If soil borings are required for the site, REL could complete these on a time-and-expense basis, 

including necessary laboratory analysis for an estimated fee of $2,250 - $2,750. 

 

We are able to begin work on the project immediately upon receiving approval.  Attached, and 

made part of this proposal, is a copy of our Standard Terms and Conditions, dated June 2006.  If 

this proposal is acceptable to you, please sign in the location below, and return a copy for our 

files.   

 

Please do not hesitate to call me if you have any questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

ROBERT E. LEE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

 

 

 

Jared G. Schmidt, P.E., Principal 

Civil/Municipal Engineering Manager 

 

JGS/JME 

 

ENC. 

 

ACCEPTED BY VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 

 

 

_____________________________________  ______________________________ 

Signature       Date 

10



W:\MASTERS\FORMS\REL MISC\STNDTERM.DOC 

ROBERT E. LEE & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
 

 
I. SCOPE 
 
Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. agrees to perform the 
engineering, surveying, and/or environmental services described in 
the proposal or agreement in which these standard terms and 
conditions are referenced and to which they are attached.  Unless 
modified in writing by the parties thereto, duties of Robert E. Lee & 
Associates, Inc. shall not be construed to exceed those services 
specifically set forth in the proposal or agreement to which these 
standard terms and conditions are attached. 
 
II. COMPENSATION 
 
Client agrees to pay for the services provided in accordance with 
the compensation provisions described in the proposal or 
agreement to which these standard terms and conditions are 
attached.  Payment to Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. will be 
made within 30 days after the date of billing.  For all amounts 
unpaid after 30 days from the invoice date, client agrees to pay 
Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. a finance charge of 1-1/2% per 
month. 
 
For time and expense compensation, charges will consist of salary-
related costs and nonsalary costs.  Salary-related charges include, 
but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. Salaries paid employees for time spent working directly on 

the subject project. 
 
2. Costs of employee fringe benefits attributable to the 

employee time spent working directly on subject project. 
 
3. General and administrative overhead charges distributed 

on basis of employee time spent working directly on 
subject project. 

 
Nonsalary costs cover items directly related to the project, other 
than those covered by salary-related costs.  Such nonsalary costs 
shall be computed on the basis of actual purchase price for items 
and services obtained from commercial sources and outside 
consultants.  Cost of items and services provided directly by Robert 
E. Lee & Associates, Inc. shall be in accordance with rate 
schedules based on normal charges of commercial sources.  
Nonsalary items and services include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 
 
1. Services directly applicable to the project such as special 

legal and accounting expenses, computer rental and 
programming costs, special consultants, borings, 
environmental analyses, commercial printing and binding, 
and similar services that are not applicable to general 
overhead. 

 
2. Identifiable reproduction services applicable to the project 

such as printing of drawings, photostating, multilithing, 
printing, and similar services. 

 
 

3. Identifiable communication services such as long-distance 
telephone, telegraph, cable, express services, and 
postage other than for general correspondence. 

 
4. Living and traveling expenses of employees when away 

from home office on business connected with the project. 
 
5. Subcontracted services. 
 
III. RESPONSIBILITY 
 
Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. is employed to render a 
professional service only, and any payments made by the client are 
compensation solely for such services rendered and 
recommendations made in carrying out the work.  Robert E. Lee & 
Associates, Inc. shall follow the practice of the civil engineering, 
surveying, and/or environmental services professions to make 
findings, opinions, factual presentations, and professional advice 
and recommendations. 
 
In performing construction management services, Robert E. Lee & 
Associates, Inc. review of work prepared or performed by other 
individuals or firms employed by the client shall not relieve those 
individuals or firms of complete responsibility for the adequacy of 
their work. 
 
It is understood that any resident engineering or construction 
observation provided by Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. is for the 
purpose of determining compliance with the technical provisions of 
the project specifications and does not constitute any form of 
guarantee or insurance with respect to the performance of a 
contractor.  Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. does not assume 
responsibility for methods or appliances used by a contractor, for 
safety of construction work, or for compliance by contractors with 
laws and regulations. 
 
It is understood and agreed by both parties that Engineer, in 
performing professional services for Owner with respect to 
hazardous substances, will make recommendations to Owner with 
respect thereto, but does not have the authority or responsibility to 
decide where disposal or treatment takes place, nor to designate 
how or by whom the hazardous substances are to be transported 
for disposal or treatment. 
 
IV. INSURANCE AND LIMITS OF LIABILITY 
 
Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. shall maintain during the life of the 
Agreement, the following minimum public liability and property 
damage insurance to cover claims for injuries, including accidental 
death, as well as from claims for property damages which may 
arise from the performance of work under the Agreement.  The 
client agrees to limit the liability of Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. 
to the extent of Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. insurance or as 
otherwise stated below: 

11



W:\MASTERS\FORMS\REL MISC\STNDTERM.DOC 

1. Comprehensive general liability insurance, including 
personal injury liability, blanket contractual liability, and 
broad form property damage liability.  The combined 
single limit of liability for bodily injury and property damage 
shall be $1,000,000. 

 
2. Automobile bodily injury and property damage liability 

insurance covering owned, nonowned, rented, and hired 
cars.  The combined single limit of liability for bodily injury 
and property damage shall be $600,000. 

 
3. Statutory workers compensation and employers' liability 

insurance as required by the state having jurisdiction. 
 
4. Professional liability insurance covering damages 

resulting from errors and omissions of Robert E. Lee & 
Associates, Inc.  The limit of liability shall be $50,000. 

 
V. SUSPENSION OF WORK 
 
The client may suspend, in writing, all or a portion of the work under 
the Agreement in the event unforeseen circumstances beyond the 
control of the client make normal progress in the performance of 
the work impossible.  Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. may request 
that the work be suspended by notifying the client, in writing, of 
circumstances which are interfering with normal progress of the 
work. The time for completion of the work shall be extended by the 
number of days the work is suspended.  In the event that the period 
of suspension exceeds 90 days, the terms of the Agreement are 
subject to renegotiation and both parties are granted the option to 
terminate work on the suspended portion of the project. 
 
VI. TERMINATION OF WORK 
 
Either party may terminate work in the event the other party fails to 
perform in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement.  
Termination of the Agreement is accomplished by 15 days prior 
written notice from the party initiating termination to the other.  
Notice of termination shall be delivered by certified mail with receipt 
for delivery returned to the sender. 
 
In the event of termination, Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. shall 
perform such additional work as is necessary for the orderly filing of 
documents and closing of the project.  The additional time for filing 
and closing shall not exceed 10 percent of the total time expended 
on the terminated portion of the project prior to the effective date of 
termination. 
 
Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. shall be compensated for the 
terminated portion of the work on the basis of work actually 
performed prior to the effective date of termination plus the work 
required for filing and closing.  Charges for the latter work are 
subject to the 10 percent limitation described in this Article. 
 
VII. ASSIGNMENT 
 
These terms and conditions and the Agreement to which they are 
attached are binding on the heirs, successors, and assigns of the 
parties hereto.  The Agreement is not to be assigned by either the 
client or Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. without the prior written 
consent of the other. 
 
 

VIII. INTEGRATION 
 
These terms and conditions and the Agreement to which they are 
attached represent the entire understanding of the client and 
Robert E. Lee & Associates, Inc. as to those matters contained 
herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force 
or effect with respect to those matters covered hereunder.  The 
Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing signed 
by both parties. 
 
IX. JURISDICTION 
 
This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the 
laws of the state of Wisconsin.  Jurisdiction of litigation arising from 
the Agreement shall be in the state of Wisconsin.  If any part of the 
Agreement is found to be in conflict with applicable laws, such part 
shall be inoperative, null and void insofar as it is in conflict with said 
laws, but the remainder of the Agreement shall be in full force and 
effect. 
 
X. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise during the design or 
construction of the project following the completion of the project, 
the Client and the Engineer agree that all disputes between them 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be submitted to 
nonbinding mediation unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. 
 
The Client shall make no claim for professional negligence, either 
directly or in a third party claim, against the Engineer unless the 
Client has first provided the Engineer with a written certification 
executed by an independent engineer currently practicing in the 
same discipline as the Engineer and licensed in the state of 
Wisconsin.  This certification shall:  a) specify each and every act 
or omission that the certifier contends is a violation of the standard 
of care expected of an Engineer performing professional services 
under similar circumstances; and b) state in complete detail the 
basis for the certifier's opinion that each such act or omission 
constitutes such a violation.  This certificate shall be provided to the 
Engineer not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the 
presentation of any claim or the institution of any mediation or 
judicial proceeding. 
 
In the event of any litigation arising from or related to the services 
provided under this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled 
to recovery of all reasonable costs incurred, including staff time, 
court costs, attorneys' fees and other related expenses. 
 
All legal actions by either party against the other arising out of or in 
any way connected with the services to be performed hereunder 
shall be barred and under no circumstances shall any such claim 
be initiated by either party after two (2) years have passed from the 
date of completion of construction phase services, unless the 
Engineer's services shall be terminated earlier, in which case the 
date of termination of this Agreement shall be used. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 June 2006 

12




